

**Master Agreement**

**BALDWIN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS  
AND THE  
BALDWIN EDUCATION ASSOCIATION**

**2005-2008**

**TABLE OF CONTENTS**

**TABLE OF CONTENTS .....2**

**PREAMBLE.....4**

**ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION.....4**

**ARTICLE 2 ASSOCIATION AND TEACHER RIGHTS .....5**

**ARTICLE 3 ASSOCIATION AND TEACHER RESPONSIBILITIES .....7**

**ARTICLE 4 PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS.....8**

**ARTICLE 5 TEACHING CONDITIONS.....9**

**ARTICLE 6 CLASS SIZE .....10**

**ARTICLE 7 TEACHING HOURS .....11**

**ARTICLE 8 PROTECTION OF TEACHERS .....13**

**ARTICLE 9 TEACHER EVALUATIONS .....15**

**ARTICLE 10 TRANSFERS AND VACANCIES .....17**

**ARTICLE 11 LAYOFF AND RECALL.....19**

**ARTICLE 12 COMPENSABLE LEAVE.....20**

**ARTICLE 13 LEAVES OF ABSENCE.....23**

**ARTICLE 14 PROFESSIONAL DUES AND PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS.....25**

**ARTICLE 15 COMPENSATION .....27**

**ARTICLE 16 FRINGE BENEFITS .....28**

**ARTICLE 17 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE .....30**

**ARTICLE 18 CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS .....34**

**ARTICLE 19 RIGHTS OF THE BOARD .....34**

**ARTICLE 20 SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLANS.....35**

<b>ARTICLE 21 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .....</b>	<b>35</b>
<b>ARTICLE 22 WAIVER .....</b>	<b>36</b>
<b>ARTICLE 23 DURATION OF AGREEMENT .....</b>	<b>36</b>
<b>APPENDIX A-1 SALARY SCHEDULE 2005-2006 .....</b>	<b>37</b>
<b>APPENDIX A-2 SALARY SCHEDULE 2006-2008 .....</b>	<b>38</b>
<b>APPENDIX B EXTRA DUTY PAYMENT SCHEDULE.....</b>	<b>39</b>
<b>APPENDIX C-1 2005-2006 CALENDAR.....</b>	<b>41</b>
<b>APPENDIX C-2 2006-2007 CALENDAR.....</b>	<b>42</b>
<b>APPENDIX C-3 2007-2008 CALENDAR .....</b>	<b>43</b>
<b>ATTACHMENTS:</b>	
<b>APPENDIX D GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM .....</b>	<b>44</b>
<b>APPENDIX E TEACHER EVALUATION FORM.....</b>	<b>46</b>
<b>APPENDIX F IDP GUIDELINES FOR PROBATIONARY &amp; TENURE.....</b>	<b>50</b>



## PREAMBLE

This Agreement is entered into this **twenty-third day of August, 2005**, by and between the Baldwin Community Schools Board of Education, 525 Fourth Street, Baldwin, Michigan 49304-9525, hereinafter called the “**District**”, and the Baldwin Education Association MEA/NEA, hereinafter called the “**Association**”. The signatories shall be the sole parties to the Agreement.

**WHEREAS**, the District and the Association have a statutory obligation, pursuant to the Michigan Employment Relations Act, to bargain with respect to hours, wages, terms and conditions of employment; and

**WHEREAS**, the parties have reached certain understandings which they desire to confirm in this Agreement;

**THEREFORE**, in consideration of the following mutual covenants, the parties hereby agree as follows:

## ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

- A. The District hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining agent for those employees included in the unit as set forth in the paragraph below. The term “teacher” when used herein shall refer to all employees in the bargaining unit represented by the Association. The term “District” when used herein shall refer to the Board of Education of the Baldwin Community Schools, its administrative agents and supervisory personnel within the meaning of Public Act 379.
- B. The following teacher personnel who hold valid contracts with the Baldwin Community Schools comprise the bargaining unit: K-12 classroom teachers, vocational education teachers, guidance counselors, developmental reading and math teachers, special education teachers, librarians, regular part-time classroom teachers, school social workers, alternative education teachers, pre-school teachers, ISS teachers, but excluding per diem, adult education teachers, RTC non-certified staff, supervisory, and administrative personnel as well as any other certified or non-certified personnel employed by the District in a non-teaching position.
- C. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any teacher rights he/she may have under the Michigan General School Laws. The rights granted to teachers hereunder shall be deemed to be in addition to those provided elsewhere.
- D. The District agrees that neither they nor their agents shall attempt to initiate any exceptions to this Agreement, except through the Association’s duly authorized negotiating team. All communications regarding such an exception will be sent to the Association’s Executive Board.

- E. Individual teacher contracts and Board Policies are expressly subordinated to the terms of the Master Agreement to the extent of any conflict or inconsistency between the two (2) documents.
- F. If any provision of the Master Agreement or any application of the Master Agreement to any teacher or group of teachers shall be found contrary to law, then such provisions or applications shall be deemed null and void except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- G. Subsequent Master Agreement:
  - 1. Negotiations leading to a new Master Agreement shall commence not less than one hundred fifty calendar days prior to the expiration of this Master Agreement.
  - 2. Neither party shall have any control over the selection of negotiation representatives of the other party and each party may select its representatives from within or without the school.
  - 3. It is recognized that no final agreement between the parties may be executed without ratification of a majority of the Board and by a majority of the Association, but the parties mutually pledge that representatives selected by each shall be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals, and make concessions in the course of negotiations or bargaining, subject only to such ultimate ratification.
  - 4. The final Master Agreement agreed to by the negotiations parties shall be distributed to all teachers at no cost to the teacher or Association. A copy shall be provided each teacher hired during the life of the contract.
  - 5. Copies of the ratified and signed Master Agreement shall be distributed to all teachers within sixty (60) calendar days of the signing.

**ARTICLE 2  
ASSOCIATION AND TEACHER RIGHTS**

- A. Pursuant to the Michigan Employment Relations Act, the District hereby agrees that every teacher employed by the District shall have the right to freely join, not join, maintain or terminate his/her membership in the Association for the purpose of engaging in collective bargaining or negotiations. The District agrees that it will not directly or indirectly discourage, deprive, or coerce any teacher in the enjoyment of rights conferred by the Michigan Employment Relations Act, or other Laws of Michigan or the Constitution of Michigan and/or the United States; that it will not discriminate against any teacher with respect to hours, wages, terms or conditions of employment.
- B. Association activities will in no way interfere with classroom or preparation time. Association meetings or announcements will be permitted only before or after the end of the teacher's working day. The Association shall have free access to the in-school mailboxes as a means of communication.

C. Other Rights

1. The Association shall have the right to use Internet, E-mail, and building facilities free of charge for meetings after regular working hours when a regular operation staff is on duty. Such use must be scheduled through the building administrator. When special custodial service is required, the District will charge the Association for actual cost involved. The BEA agrees that the use of this service is at its own risk and is not subject to the grievance procedure.
  2. Duly authorized officials of the Association shall be permitted to transact official business on school premises, provided such permission is received from the building principal. Such permission will be granted if it does not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations as determined by the building principal.
  3. The Association may post its official notices on one (1) bulletin board in each teachers' lounge. No libelous material shall be posted on the bulletin boards.
  4. The Association may use District typewriters, calculators, duplicating machines, audio-visual equipment and amplifying equipment, District computers, including Internet and E-mail usage; provided, however, all such equipment is not in use for educational or community purposes as determined by the building principal. The Association agrees to pay the cost of any materials or supplies used and to indemnify the District from any damage or cost of repair arising out of the Association's use.
  5. All of the foregoing are granted solely to the Association and shall not be utilized by any other teacher organization as contemplated by the Michigan Employment Relations Act.
- D. The District agrees to provide the Association within five (5) days, in response to written requests to the Superintendent, with such public information as is available concerning the financial resources of the District and information related to the bargaining unit as may be necessary to assist the Association to bargain collectively with the District with respect to wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment. The Association agrees that it may be required to provide assistance in compilation of some of the data. Original records shall be examined only at the office where they are kept. The Association will pay the actual cost of producing the data.
- E. The provisions of this Agreement and the wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment shall be applied without regard to race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, sex, marital status, or membership in, or association with the activities of any employee organization. The Baldwin Community Schools is an Equal Opportunity Employer.
- F. Upon appointment with the Superintendent of Schools, a teacher will be given access to his/her own personnel file to review any document (except confidential letters of recommendation) prepared by the teacher, college transcripts, progress evaluation forms prepared by the principal or supervisor and other miscellaneous documents. An Association representative may be present at

the teacher's option. Such records will be made available in the Superintendent's Office and shall not be removed from said office.

G. Academic Freedom:

1. Within the guidelines of the approved curriculum, it is agreed that an atmosphere of academic freedom be maintained.
2. Teachers will be allowed reasonable latitude in the presentation of ideas to students, considering student maturity and the exercise of professional discretion by the teacher. All matters, materials, and methods of presentation must conform to Board of Education policy and the terms of this Agreement.

H. Personal Lives:

The private and personal lives of faculty members are generally not within the appropriate concern of the District or administration. However, where it is proven that the teacher's private or personal life impacts upon the teacher's performance of his/her classroom duties or otherwise adversely affects the reputation and operation of the schools, such matters become a legitimate area of District concern.

- I. The District and Association recognize that the responsibility of evaluating students lies with the teachers. In the event a student is retained/promoted at the request of his/her parent or guardian contrary to the teacher's recommendation, such action will be permanently noted in the teacher's personnel file.

**ARTICLE 3  
ASSOCIATION AND TEACHER RESPONSIBILITIES**

- A. Teachers shall be in the classroom for the days contracted. Unexcused absences are seriously regarded and any unexcused absence will minimally result in an entry to that effect in the teacher's personnel file and a loss of pay for that day, with notice thereof to the teacher involved. The teacher shall have the right to enter in writing, any answers or objections to such notice. Any such answers will be attached to the notice and placed in the teacher's personnel file.
- B. Immediately upon determining that he/she will not return for the following school year, the teacher will file notice of such intent with the Superintendent of Schools. Resignations must be presented to the Superintendent not later than July 1 when a teacher does not intend to return for the following school year.

- C. As may be prescribed by law and/or Board policy, all teachers shall be tested for the purpose of determining that they are free of communicable tuberculosis. This testing shall be without cost to the teacher, provided that any such costs which are covered by the health insurance coverage provided by Article 16-A of this Agreement shall be submitted to the health insurance carrier for payment.
  
- D. Any bargaining unit member with 15 or more years of service to the district, who submits an unconditional written resignation to the District on or before 4:00 pm on the first Friday in February of the contract year, shall be entitled to receive payment in the amount of \$2,000. The payment shall be subject to the following:
  - 1. Resignations of qualified bargaining unit members submitted after 4:00 pm on said Friday, shall entitle the resigning bargaining unit member to payment of \$1,000 if the unconditional written resignation is received on or before 4:00 P.M. on the first Friday after April 15<sup>th</sup> of the contract year.
  - 2. Resignations of qualified bargaining unit members submitted after 4:00 pm on the first Friday after April 15<sup>th</sup> of the contract year shall not entitle the resigning bargaining unit member to any payment under the provisions of this agreement.
  - 3. Payment of the above specified amounts (minus employee FICA, tax withholding and other legally required deductions) shall be made to eligible bargaining unit members as part of their paycheck within 30 days of receipt of the letter of resignation.
  - 4. Resignations submitted under this provision, must be signed by the teacher, signify the date on which the resignation is submitted, and designate the effective date of resignation as the last teacher work day of the current contract school year, unless the teacher is physically unable to complete the year and resigns earlier.

**ARTICLE 4  
PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS**

- A. No new teacher shall be employed by the District who does not have at least a Bachelor's Degree from an accredited college or university, and a Michigan Teacher Certificate.
  
- B. Teachers are required to maintain their professional certification(s) by earning the number of credits, in the allotted time frame, required by Michigan Teacher Certification laws.
  
- C. Teachers are expected to work in cooperation with the District to earn and maintain appropriate "Highly Qualified Status" as defined in NCLB standards, for grade levels and subjects they are assigned to teach.

**ARTICLE 5**  
**TEACHING CONDITIONS**

A. General Conditions:

1. Telephone facilities shall be available in the school offices for teachers for their reasonable school business use. Personal long distance calls shall be made only in emergencies and shall be charged to the teacher's home telephone number; or, if the teacher does not have a phone, the call shall be recorded on a form available in the office. Personal calls charged to the school must be paid for within ten (10) days of notification of charges.
2. The District will provide ventilated lounges and restrooms for the use of adult staff in each building. Lounges shall be designated for employees use only. Students shall not be permitted in such lounges.
3. The District will provide a designated off-street parking area exclusively for teachers and other school employees.
4. At the request of the Association to the Superintendent, a soft drink machine may be installed in any teachers lounge provided there is no cost to the school.
5. The District shall provide attendance books, plan books, paper, pens, pencils, chalk, erasers, and other consumable materials required for the performance of the teacher's daily routine provided the teacher submits a requisition by May 1 of the preceding school year. Teachers are responsible for their own reasonable use of the consumable materials.
6. Texts, library facilities, reference materials, maps, globes, laboratory equipment, audio visual equipment, A-V materials and supplies, art supplies, athletic equipment, current periodicals, and other tools of the teaching profession will be made available to the extent possible within budget restrictions. The District will consult with teachers involved in the selection of curriculum materials.
7. Instructional materials reflecting the multi-ethnic nature of our society shall be utilized wherever possible.
8. The teachers of home economics, industrial arts, band, and the libraries shall be provided with the written status of their department budget each month.

B. Teaching Assignments:

1. Teachers shall be assigned within the scope of their teaching certification and their "Highly Qualified Status". Preference will be given to majors and minors.
2. In recognition of Federal Law, The No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (NCLB), and in recognition that it is in the best interests of the District and the teachers to qualify as many of the district's teachers as possible for "Highly Qualified" designation, there will be

established by the District, on its own or acting with partners, the option for teachers, who meet necessary conditions (minor), to qualify for that designation with Michigan's High Objective Uniform State Standard of Evaluation (portfolio).

3. Teachers shall be notified, in writing, of their tentative assignment for the forthcoming school year by June 1. A copy of the tentative Master Schedule shall be mailed to the teachers in the secondary school by July 15. Changes in assignment will be made only in the event of necessity prior to the opening of school, and the affected teacher notified, in writing, immediately.
4. Teachers with multiple building assignments shall have one (1) primary supervisor. Lesson plans of said teachers must be turned in to the primary supervisor.
5. All teachers are to have weekly lesson plans turned in to their primary supervisor every Friday during the school year. Said lesson plans are to be for the following week of school.

**ARTICLE 6  
CLASS SIZE**

A. Parties agree that class size or daily pupil limit will not exceed the following:

1. Class Size - Elementary

- |   |                                   |
|---|-----------------------------------|
| a. Pre-School   | 18                                |
| b. Developmental Kindergarten<br>& Transitional First | 24                                |
| c. Grades K-3   | 26                                |
| d. Grades 4 and above                                 | 28                                |
| e. Split Grades                                       | 24                                |
| f. Band   | 60 with aide/ 30 if no aide       |
| g. Vocal Music  | 2 class sections                  |
| h. Physical Education (K-3)                           | 1 class section                   |
| Physical Education (4 and above)                      | 2 class sections not to exceed 45 |
| i. Art  | 1 class section                   |

2. Class Size - High School and Middle School:

English, math, social studies, foreign language, science, and any other classes not listed below: 168 students maximum per day and no more than 30 students per hour.

- |                           |    |
|---------------------------|----|
| a. Voc. Ed. Business Tech | 22 |
| b. Vocal Music            | 50 |
| c. Band                   | 80 |
| d. Physical Education     | 40 |
| e. Drafting               | 22 |

f. Industrial Arts	24
g. Art	25
h. Home Economics	25
i. Pre-Voc Auto-Welding	24
j. Voc. Ed. Auto-Welding (2 hour block)	22
k. Special Education	State guidelines
l. Computer Science	No more than two (2) students per computer

3. In the secondary school there shall be at least one counselor for each 500 students or major fraction thereof.
4. Students will be distributed equally among the various classes to which a teacher is assigned to the extent possible.
5. Mainstreamed special education students shall be counted as 1.5 regular students toward class size maximum.

**B. Overloads:**

1. In the event that it is not possible to limit class size or maximum daily pupil limit to the agreed maximums, teachers will be paid \$1 per hour, per pupil listed on the class roster, regardless of absenteeism, for the first two (2) pupils over the maximum and \$3 per hour, per pupil for any number of students beyond two (2) students over the maximum for classes above the maximums.
2. Overloads of more than four (4) pupils will not be permitted in elementary classes.
3. Overloads of more than four (4) pupils per hour above the maximums or sixteen (16) pupils per day above the daily pupil limit, will not be permitted in the middle school and high school classes.

- C. In the case of team teaching, class size maximums will be proportionately increased with no penalty payment due unless size exceeds the proportionate figures.

**ARTICLE 7  
TEACHING HOURS**

**A. The teacher's normal working hours in the Baldwin Community Schools shall be as follows:**

1. Teachers shall be required to devote sufficient time in school to fulfill their professional teaching assignments and other related responsibilities. It is agreed that due to differences in operating times in various buildings, the Building Principal shall establish the time of the teacher's work day, not to exceed 7 ½ hours per day.

2. Any teacher who is required to return to school after normal working hours to participate in, supervise, or sponsor a school-related activity, may leave school at the same time as the students on the day of the activity.
- 
- B. Each teacher's schedule shall include at least one (1) period for conference and preparation. It is understood that each teacher's conference, preparation period shall be commensurate with the length of one (1) instructional period in the secondary schools and at least forty (40) consecutive minutes in the elementary schools. If a teacher's preparation time is taken by IEPs or other administrator-mandated meetings more than thirty (30) times per school year, the teacher shall be compensated for the excess at the rate identified in Article 15-F.
  - C. A regular full-time secondary teaching assignment shall include one period of not less than fifty (50) minutes preparation time per day. Supervision assignments such as lunch room duty or study hall may be included in a teacher's schedule in lieu of a teaching period. When the library is scheduled to be open for student use, the librarian will not be assigned a study hall in the library.
  - D. Teachers shall have a duty free, uninterrupted lunch period of thirty (30) minutes. In addition, teachers shall have a total of five (5) minutes passing time which can be used before and/or after the lunch period.
  - E. Teachers shall be required to attend one (1) scheduled building meeting per month and may be required to attend one (1) additional meeting per month at the discretion of the building principal. Teachers shall be provided with an agenda forty-eight (48) hours prior to each meeting, except in cases of emergency. Teacher's meetings shall not exceed one (1) hour, except by mutual agreement of the respective building administrator(s) and building representative(s) of the Association.
  - F. Teachers will attend one (1) Open House per year. Teachers will be required to attend two (2) Parent-Teacher Conferences per year. The District will determine the dates. Evening Parent-Teacher Conferences will be held from 5:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. None of these activities will be held on consecutive weeks.
  - G. There shall be one (1) daily elementary recess period of fifteen (15) minutes duration. Teachers who are assigned to supervise a recess period shall be compensated at 25% of the teacher sub-rate (Article 15-F).
  - H. Supervision of the breakfast or lunch program may be included in lieu of commensurate teaching time or the teacher will be compensated at 25% of the teacher sub-rate per daily breakfast supervision and 50% of the teacher sub-rate per daily lunch supervision.
  - I. It is understood by the District and the Association that, at this time, the District believes it is offering student instruction hours in sufficient numbers so as to satisfy the current state requirements for full funding during the entire life of this agreement. It is also understood by the parties that should the State increase the number of required student instruction hours during the life of the agreement, those increased hours will be implemented within the agreed upon calendars.

**ARTICLE 8**  
**PROTECTION OF TEACHERS**

- A. The District recognizes its responsibility to give reasonable support and assistance to teachers with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline in the classroom in accordance with established District policies and building procedures. Furthermore, all reasonable support shall include protection from liability from students and/or parents in cases of student misuse of the District's electronic resources. Each teacher, however, bears the primary responsibility for maintaining proper control and discipline. In exercising his/her responsibility, the teacher shall assure that all disciplinary actions and methods invoked are reasonable and just and in accordance with the policies and procedures referenced above.
- B. All district policies are available on the school's website. Whenever changes or additions to school policies are approved by the Board of Education, the president of the association shall be notified in writing of the policy numbers and changes or additions made to policies which affect any teacher or the teaching staff generally.
- C. Temporary suspensions of students from school may be imposed by a Principal or his/her assistant or teacher designated by him/her in writing under the Safe Schools Act (PA 102, 103, 104). If an administrator has not been appointed, the Principal shall designate, in writing, one (1) teacher in each building who shall have the authority to temporarily suspend students immediately in the absence of the Principal or his/her assistant. The Principal or his/her assistant and the teacher shall cooperatively endeavor to achieve correction of student behavior through whatever avenues are reasonably available. The District agrees that it will maintain errors and omission and general liability insurance which will include as insured persons under the terms of the policy any teacher acting as the principal's designee in such a role.
- D. A teacher may exclude a pupil from the classroom temporarily when the grossness of the offense, the persistence of the misbehavior or the disruptive effect of the violation makes the continued presence of the student intolerable. In such cases, the teacher will furnish the Principal or his/her assistant, as promptly as his/her teaching obligations will allow, with full particulars of the incident. A student temporarily excluded from class under this provision will not be returned during the same school day to the class, subject, or activity from which he/she was excluded without the concurrence of the classroom teacher and the building principal.
- E. Upon a teacher's request, a student excluded from class under 8-D (*above*), may be returned pending a conference within two (2) weeks between the student, teacher, parent/guardian, and Principal or Assistant Principal. Teachers and Principals will work cooperatively in resolving discipline problems which disrupt classroom operation. Teachers and Principals will work together with the RTC (Responsible Thinking Classroom) supervisor, and parents or guardians of students who have been removed from class for significant disruptive behavior and to establish a behavior plan that deters future misbehavior.
- F. Any teacher who is absent because of injury inflicted by a Baldwin Community Schools' student or his/her parent or legal guardian as a result of employment-related activity and entitled to Worker's Compensation shall receive from the District the difference between his/her net weekly

income and the amount to which he/she is entitled under provisions of the Worker's Compensation Laws for a period up to ten (10) weeks. Beyond ten (10) weeks, such differential payments would be charged against compensable leave on a pro-rata basis, at the teacher's option.

- G. The District will reimburse teachers the current value of any clothing or other personal property destroyed or damaged in the course of his/her employment unless such loss is due to teacher negligence, covered by insurance, or reimbursement is obtained from other sources. Reimbursement of amounts above \$5.00 and up to \$250.00 per occurrence will be paid.
- H. No complaint arising from a teacher's performance of duties as an employee of the Baldwin Community Schools by any parent or pupil shall become a part of the teacher's personnel file without adherence to the following procedures:
  - 1. If the complaint is submitted in writing to the administration, a copy shall be submitted to the involved teacher, within three (3) days, along with copies of any evidence submitted with the complaint. In the event the complaint is submitted verbally, the administration must submit the essence of the complaint in writing to the teacher, within 3 days, in order for the complaint to be acted upon.
  - 2. The teacher has the right to issue a written response to the administration before the investigative conference is held. The teacher will have two (2) days from notification to submit their response.
  - 3. The administration shall conduct an investigation into the merits of the complaint, which shall include an investigative conference with the involved teacher.
  - 4. If the administration determines that the complaint is not valid, it shall not be placed in the teacher's personnel file.
  - 5. If the administration determines that the complaint is valid and is to be included in the teacher's personnel file, a meeting involving the Superintendent, involved teacher, Association Representation and the teacher's immediate supervisor shall be convened for the purpose of communication disposition of the complaint.
- I. Alleged breaches of professional conduct shall be reported within five (5) business days of the discovery by the administration to the offending teacher and the Association.
- J. A teacher shall be entitled to be accompanied by a representative of the Association for any disciplinary action. No longer than eight (8) business days may elapse before disciplinary action is taken after a teacher has received notice of disciplinary action and has requested an Association representative.
- K. Whenever the result of a reprimand or disciplinary action for any infraction of discipline or delinquency in professional performance is reduced to writing by the administrator, the findings and decision of the administrator shall be filed, in writing, in the teacher's personnel file, and a

copy given thereof to the teacher. The teacher shall have the opportunity to prepare a written answer to the charges which shall be attached to and filed with the reprimand. The teacher shall meet with the administrator to develop a planned program to correct the deficiencies cited by the administrator.

- L. No teacher shall be disciplined, discharged or reduced in compensation without just cause, except for the non-renewal of a probationary teacher, which shall be governed exclusively by the procedures and standards of the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act applicable for the non-renewal of probationary teachers. Additionally, the District may grant and require an extension of the probationary period as permitted by the provisions of the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act and such action by the District shall not constitute any discipline subject to the terms of this provision. With respect to the discharge or demotion of a tenured teacher, the method of appeal shall be governed by the choice of the teacher for appeal to the State Tenure Commission or arbitration as provided through Article 17, Section E., Level 4, but not both.
- M. All reprimands, criticisms and evaluation conferences shall be conducted in private to the extent permissible under law.

#### **ARTICLE 9 TEACHER EVALUATIONS**

- A. All monitoring or observation of the work of a teacher shall be conducted openly and with the full knowledge of the teacher. The use of eavesdropping, hidden closed circuit television, public address systems, and similar covert surveillance devices shall be strictly prohibited to all involved parties.
- B. Video tape machines and tape recorders shall not be used for the purpose of classroom evaluation. This paragraph shall not be construed to prohibit any other use of video tape machines and tape recorders when such devices are used by mutual consent and with mutual knowledge of all involved parties.
- C. Each formal observation of a teacher shall not be for less than thirty (30) minutes. For the purpose of this Article, probationary and tenured teachers will be evaluated at least as often as applicable laws require.
- D. The evaluator will not verbally interrupt the teacher's presentation during the period of observation.
- E. Each teacher, upon his/her employment or at the beginning of the school year, whichever is later, shall be apprised of the specific criteria on which he/she will be evaluated.
- F. Evaluations shall be by personal observation in the classroom as well as a teacher's professional conduct during the school day, conducted by the (a) Superintendent; (b) Building Principal or

Assistant Building Principal; or (c) other full time administrator possessing a Master's Degree and three (3) years successful teaching experience at the teacher's level of certification (Elementary or Secondary). The designated supervisor shall evaluate the teacher. If the evaluation indicates deficiencies, either the teacher or administrator shall have the right to have a subsequent evaluation performed by another administrator employed by the District meeting the criteria specified above. If the deficiency is not noted on two consecutive subsequent evaluations, the deficiency shall be deemed to be corrected.

- G. For the first evaluation of the year, a pre-evaluation conference shall be held between the evaluator and the probationary teacher. A pre-evaluation group conference shall be held between tenured teachers and the evaluator.
- H. All evaluations shall be reduced to writing and a copy given to the teacher within ten (10) working days of the final observation upon which a performance evaluation is based. The written evaluation shall indicate areas where growth is needed, as well as specific suggestions for improvement in those areas, and progress or lack of progress noted since previous evaluations. All new probationary teachers shall have an Individualized Development Plan (IDP) in place by the end of the first semester of service. Any teacher whose overall performance is deemed less than satisfactory shall have an IDP of improvement implemented, following guidance of applicable laws. The building administrator shall work with the teacher to improve the weakness as outlined in the evaluation. Teachers recognize their responsibility to work with the administration in resolving and remediating noted performance deficiencies.
- I. Following each formal evaluation, which shall include a conference with the evaluator, the teacher shall sign and be given a copy of the evaluation report prepared by his/her evaluator. In no case shall the teacher's signature be construed to mean that he/she necessarily agrees with the evaluation. A teacher may submit a self-evaluation and/or submit additional comments which shall be attached to the file copy of the written evaluation if he/she desires within ten (10) working days. All written evaluations are to be placed in the teacher's personnel file. Upon request, the teacher shall be entitled to confer with the Superintendent regarding his/her evaluations.
- J. Probationary teachers shall be observed no earlier than the first month of service and no later than ninety (90) days prior to the end of the probationary year (probationary year to be defined as a probationary teacher's anniversary date of hire). At least sixty (60) days before the end of each probationary year, the District shall provide the probationary teacher with a definite written statement as to whether or not his/her work has been satisfactory. Failure to submit a written statement shall be considered as conclusive evidence that the teacher's work is satisfactory. Any probationary teacher or teacher not on continuing contract shall be employed for the ensuing year unless notified in writing at least sixty (60) days before the close of the probationary year that his/her services will be discontinued.



Middle School &  
High School

Michigan Teaching Certification for grade and  
subject area plus Highly Qualified Status  
where required

B. Vacancies:

1. A vacancy shall be defined as an available permanent teaching position in the bargaining unit, or an administrative position established by the District, caused either by promotion, resignation, termination, or a newly created position, provided however in filling regular part-time vacancies the following procedures shall apply: A vacancy in a regular part-time teaching position (less than a full work day) shall be posted at the end of sixty (60) work days and filled within fourteen (14) calendar days of the posted date or the part-time teaching position will be eliminated.
2. Extra duty and extra curricular positions shall be considered vacancies for the next school year and posted by April 15.
3. Vacancies shall be publicized for fourteen (14) calendar days by posting a written notice of such vacant position, with qualifications and job description (where possible), in each school building (administrative office, teachers' lounge, bulletin boards in District offices, District Web Page). A copy shall be sent by e-mail to all BEA members, and a hard-copy to the BEA President. Such vacancy shall not be filled, except on a temporary basis, until such fourteen (14) day posting has been accomplished. During vacation periods outside the normal school year, the notification requirement shall be filled by giving written notice to each teacher, the Association, and posting a copy in the Superintendent's Office. If a vacancy has remained unfilled more than 60 days (except by a substitute), the position will not be filled with a permanent teacher until a new posting has been made and its time lines followed.
4. Any teacher may apply for any vacant position, including extra duty positions. In filling the position, however, the District shall consider qualifications, background attainments, and other relevant factors, including service in the District. Teachers may be considered as well as applicants from outside the District. If two (2) or more applicants are equal with regard to all of the foregoing selection standards, the positions shall be filled by (1) from within the District, and (2) by the teacher with the longest continuous service in the District. In all appointments to administrative positions, the District's decision shall be final.
5. If requested, unsuccessful applicants shall be given reasons for their not attaining the position.

**ARTICLE 11**  
**LAYOFF AND RECALL**

- A. The Association recognizes the right of the District to determine the monetary savings to be achieved by personnel or operation cuts to balance the budget and the right to determine the areas in which such cuts shall be made. Teachers subject to layoff for the subsequent school year shall be notified of such layoff in writing as follows:
1. Probationary teachers shall be notified at least forty-five (45) calendar days prior to the last day of the current school year or thirty (30) calendar days prior to the first school day of the second semester.
  2. Tenured teachers shall be notified by no later than July 1 or no later than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the first school day of the second semester. Bumping a teacher in response to layoff may occur after the above dates.
- B. The teacher(s) in the specific position(s) being reduced or eliminated shall be the teacher(s) notified of layoff. A teacher notified of layoff shall have the right to replace another member of the bargaining unit who is the least senior teacher within the laid off teacher's certification and qualifications as defined in Article 10. A laid off teacher wishing to bump another member of the bargaining unit shall notify the Superintendent in writing within three (3) business days of receiving their layoff notice. The teacher subject to the bump shall be notified in writing by the Superintendent that he/she is laid off within five (5) business days of the Superintendent's receipt of said bump notice.
- C. Seniority shall be computed from the last date of hire and shall be defined to mean the amount of time continuously employed as a member of the bargaining unit. Seniority shall continue to accrue during the time spent on layoff or a leave of absence. The District shall prepare and present to the Association a current seniority list of bargaining unit members prior to November 15 of each year. Teachers shall have until January 15 to make any protest as to the accuracy of the information contained on the seniority list. Absent any objections by any teacher or the Association, the list prepared by the District will be regarded as conclusive. Accompanying the name of each teacher on the list shall be the date of last hire as well as each teacher's certification and qualification status as defined in Article 10. Teachers who are transferred to a supervisory or executive position within the District shall retain such seniority as was accrued while a member of the bargaining unit should they leave the supervisory or executive position and return to the bargaining unit.
- D. Changes in a teacher's certification following layoff shall not permit the teacher to be recalled by bumping or affect their right to recall at a later date. Teachers are required to deliver to the Superintendent written notice of changes in their certification, academic majors/minors, or teaching experience within the last five (5) years. A laid off teacher who acquires additional certificate endorsements while on layoff shall be entitled to recall consistent with the teacher's

seniority, qualifications and certification (including revisions to certification) as defined in Article 10.

- E. Teachers on layoff shall be recalled in the inverse order of layoff provided the teacher is certified and qualified for the vacancy. When an opportunity for recall exists, and two (2) or more teachers on layoff possess equal seniority, the District shall determine which of these teachers shall be recalled. No new teachers shall be employed by the District while there are teachers of the District who are laid off unless there are no laid off teachers who are certified and qualified to fill the vacancy. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, the District shall not be required to post any vacancy when there are teacher(s) on layoff who are certified and qualified for the vacancy who possess sufficient seniority.
- F. The District shall give written notice of recall from layoff by sending a certified letter to the teacher at his/her last known address as it appears in the District's records. With a copy sent to the Association President. If a teacher fails to respond in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of mailing of recall notice, said teacher shall be considered as having voluntarily quit and shall thereby terminate his/her individual employment contract and any other employment relationship with the District.
- G. In recalling tenure teachers from layoff, no teacher will be terminated, lose recall rights, or seniority, if the teacher is at the time of recall under contract with another school District.
- H. Upon layoff, District contributed fringe benefits will be paid for the remainder of the current insurance year, September 1 to August 31. Subsequent to August 31, teachers may continue insurance benefits provided that the teacher contributes monthly payments to the carrier. The District shall not be obligated to issue or extend any individual employment contract or supplemental employment contract during layoff.

## **ARTICLE 12 COMPENSABLE LEAVE**

- A. At the beginning of the school year, each teacher shall be credited with fourteen (14) days of Compensable Leave. This benefit will be prorated for teachers hired after the beginning of the school year according to appropriate percentages associated with the hiring date.
- B. Each teacher shall be entitled to an accumulation of the unused portion of each year's compensable leave which shall be available to him/her in future years. Teachers shall be given written notification by October 1 of each school year as to the number of Compensable Leave Days that they have accumulated.
- C. Compensable Leave shall be granted in accordance with the schedule specified herein, subject to the following conditions:

1. Personal Illness: Bona fide physical or mental incapacity of the teacher to report for and discharge his/her duties to the extent of unused days of credit.
2. Illness or serious injury in the immediate family up to a maximum of ten (10) days per occurrence: Absence necessitated because of the personal attendance of the teacher. (Immediate family shall include the teacher's spouse, children, parents or foster parents, parents-in-law, brothers, sisters, and any other person for whose financial or physical care he/she is principally responsible.)
3. Bereavement Leave: Up to a maximum of five (5) days per occurrence not chargeable against Compensable Leave days will be granted in case of the death of a teacher's father, mother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, spouse, children, foster child, brother, sister, grandparents, or grandchildren.
4. Additional Bereavement Leave: Leave up to a maximum of five (5) days chargeable against Compensable Leave days will be granted in case of the death of a teacher's father, mother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, spouse, children, foster child, brother, sister, grandparents, or grandchildren.
5. Funerals: One (1) day leave chargeable against Compensable Leave may be granted by the teacher's supervisor or the Superintendent of Schools for attendance at funerals for persons other than those in the immediate family. One (1) additional day chargeable against Compensable Leave may be granted for funerals held more than two hundred fifty (250) miles from Baldwin.
6. Personal Leave: Leave Days may be taken for the purposes of conducting personal business except as detailed below.
  - a. Personal Leave days shall not be used for private or outside business for personal income.
  - b. Personal Leave days shall not be used for child care.
  - c. Personal Leave days shall not be used for recreation (i.e. hunting, camping, etc.) purposes.
  - d. Personal Leave days shall not be used for extending a holiday or vacation period unless mutually agreed to in writing by the Superintendent. Personal Leave days shall not be used on consecutive days, the first or last week of each semester or the day before or the day after a holiday or vacation (except in an emergency as determined by the Superintendent). Teachers who need to use Personal Leave days on consecutive days, during the first or last week of each semester or the day before or the day after a holiday

or vacation shall be required to obtain prior approval and verify their use with their building administrator and the Superintendent.

- D. At the end of the school year, any unused Compensable Leave days shall be credited to the teacher's accumulated Compensable Leave days.
- E. The Superintendent may request a physician's or psychiatrist's statement for an absence of five (5) or more consecutive days, or a consistent sustained pattern of absence due to illness.
- F. Personal, excused absences, without payroll or Compensable Leave deduction, may be authorized by the Superintendent for affairs relative to community service, or for professional improvement such as approved conferences or visitations to other schools.
- G. In all cases, teachers shall notify the designated person of unavailability for work and of the nature (12.C.1-6) of the day being used by 7:00 a.m. It shall be the responsibility of the administration to make every effort to arrange for a substitute. Each teacher will provide written lessons to be utilized during any absence as per Article 5-B-4.
- H. At the beginning of every school year, the Association shall be credited with fifteen (15) days to be used by teachers who are officers or designated representatives of the Association. The Association shall be credited an additional five (5) days the last year of the contract. The Association agrees to notify the District or its agents no less than forty-eight (48) hours in advance of taking such leave. No more than two (2) teachers shall use this leave on the same day, unless approved by the Superintendent.
- I. Upon a teacher's resignation or retirement from employment with the Baldwin Community Schools, when such employment has equaled or exceeded five (5) years, the District shall pay \$60.00 per day of accumulated Compensable Leave days.
- J. A common/shared compensable leave sick bank is hereby established. Any teacher, to be eligible for use of the bank, shall donate a minimum of one (1) compensable leave day to the said bank per year by October 1.
  - 1. A person withdrawing from membership in the bank will not be allowed to withdraw the contributed days.
  - 2. The first thirty (30) calendar days of the teacher's illness or disability will not be covered by the bank, but must be covered by the person's own accumulated sick leave or absence without pay.
  - 3. All of a person's personal compensable days must be exhausted to receive days from the bank.
  - 4. A medical report must accompany any request for obtaining sick days from the bank.
  - 5. A person may obtain up to 45 days per year.
  - 6. Once a written request has been made to the Superintendent, a meeting will be called (within 5 days) of the sick bank committee (composed of two BEA members - appointed by the BEA

President, and two administrators - appointed by the Superintendent). The committee will decide if the sick bank days will be given to the requesting teacher.

7. A person may not receive days from the sick bank if he/she is receiving short or long-term disability benefits
8. At any point the teacher becomes eligible for LTD, access to the sick bank is terminated.
9. No requirement exists for repayment of days to the sick bank upon a teacher's return to work and accumulating more days.

### **ARTICLE 13 LEAVES OF ABSENCE**

- A. Except as provided by law or specifically stated to the contrary herein, all leaves of absence shall be without pay, without fringe benefits, and without salary increment credit. An exception to this is: if a teacher works at least 1 day during any calendar month, then fringe benefits, including health insurance will be provided for that month.
- B. Any teacher whose personal illness or disability extends beyond the period compensable under Article 12 of this Agreement (Compensable Leave) shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months from the date granted by the District. Annual extensions of such leave may be granted by the District upon written request of the teacher and medical certification. A teacher anticipating extended illness may be granted such leave prior to the expiration of his/her accumulated Compensable Leave Days, and upon returning from sick leave, will have the unused portion of his/her accumulated Compensable Leave reinstated. Prior to return from a leave of absence for illness or disability, the teacher will provide a statement from his/her physician or psychiatrist indicating that the teacher is able to perform the essential functions of his/her assignment. The District reserves the right to have teachers returning from such leave promptly examined by a doctor of its choice at District expense.
- C. Provided that sufficient replacement can be made and at least three (3) months written notice is given, the District may grant one (1) year (school year) leave for full time participation in the Peace Corps, Teacher's Corps, full time academic study or research, elected public office, or office in a professional organization. To qualify, the teacher must have achieved tenure and certify return at the end of such leave. Leave pursuant to this paragraph will be credited to salary schedule increment.
- D. Child Birth and Child Care Leave:

Teachers who become pregnant shall notify the Superintendent no later than sixty (60) days prior to the anticipated date of desired leave.

1. Teachers desiring to utilize their accumulated Compensable Leave shall teach until physically unable to do so and return to their assignment as soon as they are physically able to do so, both determined by the teacher's physician. All fringe benefits shall continue in effect. If a teacher

has exhausted all her accumulated Compensable Leave prior to recovery from such disability, the teacher shall be placed on unpaid personal illness leave.

2. Teachers desiring to take a leave of absence without pay shall be granted up to two (2) semesters. Teachers electing this option shall have District contributed health insurance coverage until the month following birth of the child or three (3) months, whichever is less. The teacher and her physician shall determine the beginning date of the leave. The teacher shall return at the beginning of a semester or (a marking period) to the extent possible. A teacher may use her accumulated Compensable Leave during the period of time that she is physically unable to perform her assigned duties. The leave may be extended at the discretion of the District if such is requested in writing thirty (30) days prior to the termination date of initial leave. In the event of a miscarriage or death of the object child of the leave, the leave may be terminated upon the teacher's request.

3. A one (1) year unpaid child care leave may be granted to any tenure teacher provided that he/she gives sixty (60) days advance notice intended for such leave.

E. Military leave will be granted based upon statutory provisions.

F. Leaves for Other Purposes:

1. Absence for jury or witness service: In such cases, a teacher will be paid the difference between his/her pay for that duty and his/her regular pay provided he/she has cooperated with school officials in attempting to obtain a postponement from such service for the period of the school year. This section shall be rendered null and void if said court appearance is a result of or in connection with other employment held by the teacher.

2. National Guard Emergency Call-up: In such cases, a teacher will be paid the difference between his/her pay for that duty and his/her regular pay for up to ten (10) working days providing proof of service and pay are submitted to the Superintendent of Schools.

3. Leaves of absence with pay for up to three (3) days per year not chargeable against Compensable Leave shall be granted in connection with an appearance before a court or an administrative agency when subpoenaed (as a witness) in any case connected with the teacher's employment or the school, except that leave pay shall not be granted in connection with Unfair Labor Practice hearings involving the District and Association.

G. A teacher returning from a leave of absence must notify the Superintendent of Schools at least one (1) month prior to the expiration date of the leave or the date of return in order to permit planning, scheduling, and placement. Upon return from leaves of absence under B, D, and F above, the teacher shall be returned at his/her request to the position held prior to the leave, provided the position still exists. If such leave exceeds sixty (60) school days, notification must be given to the Superintendent at least thirty (30) days prior to the start of the semester in which the teacher wishes to return. A teacher returning from other leaves under this Article shall be returned to

his/her previous position, if open, or to the first open position for which he/she is certified and qualified.

H. Continuance of Benefits:

Teachers who are on unpaid leaves of absence may continue the benefits of the group rate insurance programs in effect by providing for direct payment to the insurance carrier. This section is subject to the rules and regulations of said insurance carrier.

I. All leaves of absence must have beginning and ending dates. There shall be no exceptions.

J. No portion of this Article shall be deemed to deny or diminish any rights the employee may have under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

**ARTICLE 14  
PROFESSIONAL DUES AND PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS**

A. Any teacher who is a member of the Association, or has applied for membership may sign and deliver to the District an assignment authorizing deduction of professional dues and assessments uniformly required for membership in the Association. Pursuant to such authorization, the District shall deduct one-ninth (1/9) of such dues from the second regular check of the teacher each month for nine (9) months beginning in September and ending in May. Any teacher who shall not perform services for any entire month of the school year shall have his/her dues reduced by one-ninth (1/9) of the yearly dues for such entire month he/she did not render service, except where failure to perform service for any month was a result of the teacher taking a leave of absence or sick leave provided by this Agreement. Dues and assessments will be set in September of each year.

B. Any teacher who is not a member of the Association in good standing or who does not make application for membership within thirty (30) days from the date of employment shall, as a condition of employment, pay as a representative benefit fee to the Association an amount determined by the Association, provided, however that the teacher may authorize payroll deductions for such fee in the same manner as provided in the preceding Paragraph A.

C. In the event a teacher shall not pay such a representation service fee directly to the Association or authorize payment through payroll deduction, the District shall, upon completion of the procedures contained herein at the request of the Association and pursuant to MCLA 408.477; MSA 17.277(7), deduct the fee from the teacher's wages and remit same to the Association. Payroll deductions made pursuant to this provision shall be made as provided in section A above.

D. The Association in all cases of mandatory fee deduction pursuant to MCLA 408.477; MSA 17.277(7) shall notify the teacher of non-compliance by certified mail, return receipt requested. Said notice shall detail the non-compliance and shall provide ten (10) days for compliance, and shall further advise the teacher that a request for wage deduction may be filed with the District in the event that compliance is not effected. If the teacher fails to remit the fee or fails to authorize deduction for same, the Association may request the District to make the deduction.

- E. When the teacher objects to the appropriate amount of the representation service fee, the amount of the deduction contested shall be placed in an escrow account as required by law until a determination of the appropriate amount of the deduction has been determined. The teacher contesting the appropriate amount of the fee to be deducted, must exhaust the internal administrative procedures of the Association. The remedies of such procedures shall be exclusive, and unless and until such procedures, including any administrative or judicial review thereof, shall have been exhausted, no dispute, claim or complaint by an objecting teacher concerning the application and interpretation of this Article shall be subject to the grievance procedure set forth in this Agreement, or to any other administrative or judicial procedure.
- F. With respect to all sums of money deducted by the District pursuant to authorization of the teacher, whether professional dues or benefit fee, the District agrees to transmit such sums to the Association no later than the fifteenth (15th) day from the date of said deductions, with itemized printout, to the Association Treasurer. Provided, that the Association shall maintain a direct deposit account at a financial institution of its choice for purposes of receipt of funds deducted pursuant to this Article. Transmission of funds to said financial institution shall constitute performance of the District's obligation under this paragraph.
- G. The Association agrees to indemnify and save the Board of Education, including each individual school board member and all authorized agents of the District, harmless against any and all claims, demands, costs, suits, or any other forms of liability (including back pay and all court or administrative agency costs), that may arise out of or by reason of, action taken or not taken by the District for the purpose of complying with this Article.
1. The District will not incur any expenses, damages, or outlay of money which may be sustained by enforcement of this Article.
  2. The Association, following consultation with the District, has the right to decide whether to defend any such action or whether or not to appeal the decision of any court or other tribunal regarding the validity of the section or the defense which may be assessed against the District by any court or tribunal.
  3. The Association, following consultation with the District, has the right to choose the legal counsel to defend any said suit or action.
  4. The Association, following consultation with the District, shall have the right to compromise or settle any claim made against the District under this Section.
- H. This Article shall be effective retroactively to the date of this Agreement and all sums payable shall be determined from said date.

**ARTICLE 15  
COMPENSATION**

- A. When a regular pay day occurs within a vacation period during the school year, checks shall be mailed to the teacher's address on file in Central Office on the day prior to the regularly scheduled pay date or that pay day shall be advanced to the last day prior to the beginning of said vacation period at the option of the District.
  
- B. A teacher who is required as part of his/her assignment to use his/her own vehicle for transportation in order to perform regularly assigned duties shall be reimbursed at the I.R.S. rate. Mileage will be computed on the basis of actual miles logged and reported each month. The mileage reimbursement provided in this section is not applicable to the performance of any duty or responsibility with respect to any Appendix B position, except for conferences, seminars, training sessions and/or professional meetings for the respective coaches or sponsors when attendance is authorized by prior approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee.
  
- C. Salary Schedule Placement:
  - 1. Teachers transferring into the Baldwin Community Schools District shall be given full credit for teaching experience up to seven (7) years. The District may authorize additional teaching or relevant employment experience credit beyond seven (7) years. Any former teacher of the Baldwin Community Schools who is re-employed within a period of not exceeding five (5) years shall be placed on the salary schedule at the next step above the one on which his/her salary was based when he/she left the District, or shall be given credit for teaching experience as provided in this section, whichever is greater.
  - 2. Up to two (2) years will be allowed for honorably completed military active duty.
  - 3. Up to two (2) years will be allowed for satisfactorily completed Peace Corps or VISTA service.
  - 4. The salaries shall be adjusted each semester for college credit verified by official transcript no later than thirty (30) days after the beginning of such semester.
  
- D. Salaries of teachers covered by this Agreement are set forth in Appendix A, attached to and incorporated as part of this Agreement.
  
- E. Extra Duty pay will be provided in Appendix B, which is attached to and incorporated as part of this Agreement.
  
- F. Upon authorization by the administration, any member of the bargaining unit who voluntarily substitutes for another teacher during his/her conference/preparation period will receive \$22.00 for the period.
  
- G. If a teacher is absent, no sub is available, and another teacher provides instruction for a combined class wherein the number of students in the combined class exceeds the number of students

regularly assigned to the teacher, that teacher shall receive the teacher sub rate per hour, three times the teacher sub rate per half-day, or six times the teacher sub rate per full-day, for each unit served in such capacity. No extra compensation will be paid unless the number of students in the combined class exceeds the number of students regularly assigned to the teacher.

- H. The work year of teachers covered by this Agreement shall consist of 183 days. Teachers new to the District will work 184 days.
- I. Nothing in this Agreement shall require the District to keep school open in the event of inclement weather, malfunction of equipment, Acts of God, or other emergencies. When schools are closed to students due to the above conditions, teachers shall not be required to report for work and shall not suffer loss of compensation for such days. However, teachers shall work on any rescheduled day(s) with no additional compensation to insure that the District has complied with the student instructional day requirements of the State of Michigan. All such days shall be rescheduled at the end of the school year, and the first (2) days shall not be rescheduled.
- J. In the event of a late start, teachers will be required to report for work proportional to the amount of the delay. When school is closed early due to inclement weather, teachers will be permitted to leave after departure of the buses.
- K. In order to encourage professional growth and development, teachers on the BA+18 scale with continuing certification or beyond, shall be eligible for tuition reimbursement. Such teachers taking five (5) credits or less shall be reimbursed for up to two credit hours per fiscal year. Teachers taking six (6) or more credits shall be reimbursed for up to three credit hours per fiscal year. The credits must be in a planned program or approved in advance by the Superintendent. The maximum fee reimbursed will be the average per credit cost charged at C.M.U., W.S.C.C., F.S.U., and G.V.S.U. Reimbursement will be made after copies of proof of payment and a transcript indicating successful completion of the course is presented to Central Office. If a teacher received tuition payment from scholarships or grants, no duplicate reimbursement will be made by the Board.

**ARTICLE 16**  
**FRINGE BENEFITS**

- A. The District agrees to provide the following fringe benefits. Upon submission of a written application, the District shall provide, without cost to all full-time teachers, MESSA Super Care 1-2003 Revisions health insurance protection for a full twelve month period for each teacher who completes a full academic year of employment and his/her immediate family. To the extent permitted by law, MESSA Super Care 1 or Limited Medicare Supplement (formerly MESSA-Care) and Medicare, Part B, premium shall be paid on behalf of the teacher, spouse, and /or qualified dependents eligible for Medicare.
  - 1. Each eligible teacher shall choose either MESSA Pak A or B as described below:

- Pak A: MESSA Super Care 1 with the \$5 prescription drug card and Preventive Care Plan  
Long Term Disability (Plan 1 - 70%; 60 calendar days modified fill);  
\$5,000 maximum; social security freeze  
Alcohol/drug and mental/nervous – same as other illness  
Delta Dental (70/70S/70: \$1,000 max, 70@\$2,500 max)  
Term Life (\$40,000 with AD&D)  
Vision (VSP-3+)
- Pak B: \$200 per month for non-taxable 401(k), 403(b), MESSA, 457 Deferred  
Compensation Plan, or MEA Financial Services options  
Long Term Disability (same as Plan A)  
Delta Dental (80/80S/80: \$1,000 max, 80@\$2,900 max)  
Term Life (\$50,000 with AD&D)  
Vision (VSP-3+).

2. The insurance premium for MESSA-PAK A is shared by the District and teachers. The amounts are listed below. For years after 2005-2006 the district subsidy may increase by as much as 10% per year, so long as the teacher subsidy remains at least \$26 per month. The teacher subsidy for the 2<sup>nd</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup> years of this contract will be \$26 per month plus any amounts that exceed a 10% increase in the MESSA PAK-A premium.

	<u>2005-2006</u>	<u>2006-2007</u>	<u>2007-2008</u>
Teacher PAK A	\$26.00	\$26.00 + excess if any	\$26.00 + excess if any
District PAK A	\$1192.97	\$1312.27	\$1443.50
District PAK B	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00

- a. Any amounts exceeding the employer subsidy for either Plan A or Plan B specified above shall be payroll deducted. The monthly member paid amount for July and August will remain the same as for the prior ten months regardless of any change in the actual rates for that period.
  - b. Each eligible teacher may elect either Plan A or Plan B but not both.
  - c. The District may consolidate this bargaining unit with other employee groups under MESSA-PAK insurance coverage for rating purposes to effect overall premium cost savings, provided that no teacher shall be required to pay more toward his/her premium than he/she would have had to pay if this bargaining unit had not been consolidated for rating purposes.
  - d. Section 125 Cafeteria Plan adopted April 1, 1997.
3. If both spouses are employed by the District only one (1) Plan A premium will be paid by the District to maintain MESSA-PAK coverage.
  4. Teachers who have District-provided term life insurance, as provided through either health or life insurance plans, shall have a thirty-one (31) day conversion right upon termination of

employment. Any teacher electing his/her right of conversion in order to maintain his/her term life insurance in force must contact the insurance carrier within thirty-one (31) days of his/her last day of employment.

5. Conditions:

- a. Teachers newly hired by the District shall be eligible for District paid insurance premiums upon acceptance by the insurance carrier(s) on the first day of the month following the month work commenced.
- b. Teachers newly hired by the District electing insurance coverage at the beginning of their employment shall have premium amounts paid by the District of Education for that proportion of the month actually worked. The teacher shall be responsible for the remaining premium amount attributable to days not worked for the District. Full District paid insurance subsidy shall commence on the first full month worked, upon acceptance of written application by the insurance carrier(s) policy holder.
- c. Changes in family status shall be reported by the teacher to the Personnel Office within thirty (30) days of the change. The teacher is responsible for any overpayment of premiums made by the District on his/her behalf for failure to comply with this paragraph.
- d. The District agrees to provide the above-mentioned insurance benefit programs within the underwriting rules and regulations as set forth by the carrier(s) in the Master Contract by the Policyholder.
- e. To be eligible for the above coverage (or increases in coverage) teachers must be able to satisfy the "at work" requirements with the District before benefits are effective.
- f. Teachers working less than a full contract year shall have their benefits prorated over the remaining portion of the contract year.
- g. All teachers employed by the District shall receive fully paid fringe benefits. Teachers employed on a regular part-time basis shall be eligible for full insurance coverage with prorated paid premiums, based upon their regularly scheduled time of employment.

**ARTICLE 17  
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

- A. Any claim by the Association or any teacher that there has been a violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of the terms of this Agreement shall be defined as a grievance and shall be resolved through the procedures set forth herein.
- B. All time limits set forth herein shall refer to business days. Time limits are to be extended only by mutual written consent of the parties. It is understood that the time limits set forth herein or agreed upon shall be considered substantive and failure to conform to them shall mean default by the party failing to conform.

C. The District agrees that the Association may designate building representatives and an alternate building representative who shall be teachers. The Association will furnish the District with the names of its building representatives, alternates, and Grievance Chairperson and such changes as may occur from time to time in such personnel so that the District may at all times be advised as to the authority of the individual representatives of the Association with whom it is dealing. Until the District has received written notice from the Association, it shall not be required to deal with such teachers purporting to be representatives. It is understood that, whenever possible, grievance problems will be handled at times other than when the teacher is at work. In the event, however, in the handling of a grievance, it becomes necessary for building representative to leave his/her work, he/she shall first obtain permission from his/her Supervisor or Principal. The privilege of the building representative leaving during his/her working hours without loss of time or pay is subject to the understanding that such time will be devoted to the proper handling of the grievance; will be done as expeditiously and with as little interruption to work as possible; must not leave any students unattended; and that the privilege will not be abused. The building representative shall return to his/her work as promptly as possible and upon returning shall report at once to his/her Principal.

D. A written grievance as required herein shall contain the following:

1. It shall be signed.
2. It shall be specific.
3. It shall contain a synopsis of the facts giving rise to the alleged violations.
4. It shall cite the section or subsection of this contract alleged to have been violated.
5. It shall contain the date of the alleged violation.
6. It shall specify the relief requested.

Any written grievance not in accordance with the above requirements may be rejected as improper. Such a rejection will not extend the limitations herein set forth.

E. LEVEL 1:

No grievance shall be processed unless it is presented at Level 1 within five (5) days of its occurrence. Any teacher who believes he/she has a grievance must present such grievance on an informal basis with his/her immediate supervisor. The Association Building Representative shall schedule the meeting with the immediate supervisor and the Building Representative or the Grievance Chairperson shall be present at the informal conference.

If the grievance is not resolved on an informal basis, the grievance shall be reduced to writing by the Association within ten (10) days of its occurrence or knowledge of its occurrence. Within five (5) days after the presentation of a written grievance, the immediate supervisor shall give his/her answer in writing to the grievant and the Association.

In the event the grievance involves more than one (1) grievant or is filed by the Association, it will be filed with the appropriate administrator who is empowered to remedy the alleged grievance.

LEVEL 2:

In the event that the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance, the Association shall file a copy of the written grievance within five (5) days of the immediate supervisor's written answer at Level One to the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee.

Within five (5) days of receipt of the written grievance, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall hold a meeting in an attempt to resolve the alleged grievance. Only the necessary persons as determined by the Superintendent and the Association's Grievance Chairperson shall be present at the meeting.

Within five (5) days upon conclusion of the meeting, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall present the Association's Grievance Chairperson, the President, and the Grievant with a written answer to the alleged grievance.

LEVEL 3:

If the alleged grievance is not settled at Level 2, it shall be referred in writing to the Board of Education within five (5) days after the date of the disposition by the Superintendent or his/her designee in Level 2, or upon referral by the Superintendent.

The Board of Education or Committee thereof shall hold a hearing to consider the alleged grievance. The Association shall have an opportunity to present its views at this level. The Board of Education or Committee thereof shall render a decision on the alleged grievance and present it in writing to the Association within twenty-five (25) days after the date the matter was referred to the Board of Education.

LEVEL 4:

If the alleged grievance is not settled at Level 3, the matter may be referred to arbitration in writing by the Association within ten (10) days from the date of the Board's decision at Level 3. The arbitrator shall be chosen in accordance with the rules set forth in the current Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall render no decision which would require or permit action in violation of Michigan School Laws. The arbitrator's fees and expenses shall be shared by the District and the Association equally except either party requesting special services of the arbitrator shall bear the full cost of such services. Both parties agree that the arbitrator's decision is binding and may be enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction.

1. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of this Agreement.

2. If a teacher is disciplined by an administrator and the matter goes to arbitration, the arbitrator shall not substitute his/her judgment for that of the District, unless there is evidence that the administrator violated the terms and conditions of the contract.
  3. It is expressly understood that no grievance shall be filed which is based on content of a written evaluation. However, in the event of an alleged contract violation pertaining to the procedures set forth in the evaluation process, such a claim is subject to the grievance procedure.
  4. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to consider and/or rule upon the decision and/or action of the Board of Education to terminate and/or not renew the employment of any probationary teacher, nor to consider and/or rule upon the decision and/or action of the Board of Education to extend the probationary period of any probationary teacher.
  5. The arbitrator shall have no power to hear any grievance protesting the Board's failure to appoint or renew an individual to an extra-curricular or extra duty position.
  6. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to consider and/or rule upon the decision and/or action of the Board of Education to discharge or demote a tenured teacher when the teacher has elected to pursue an appeal of the discharge or demotion through the statutory procedures of the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act. However, the arbitrator shall have the authority to consider and rule upon the discharge or demotion of a tenured teacher when the teacher has elected to pursue an appeal through arbitration instead of through the statutory procedures of the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act.
  7. A tenured teacher may elect to appeal the decision to the Tenure Commission or file a demand for arbitration, but not both. The election of the teacher to pursue an appeal to arbitration or through the statutory procedures of the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act shall be made within twenty (20) days from receipt of the written decision from the Board of Education. The election shall be made by the filing of a demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association or the filing of an appeal with the State Tenure Commission. A teacher making the election to pursue the matter to arbitration instead of through the statutory procedures of the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act, at the time of filing the demand for arbitration, must withdraw any pending request for further proceedings pursuant to the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act. The arbitration hearing shall not proceed until it is determined that the tenured teacher has no subsequent recourse for an appeal or hearing according to the statutory procedures of the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act. Should the Tenure Act be changed by legislation, the Local Controlling Board, during their review to determine to move forward with Tenure charges, it will allow the teacher and his/her representative to present pertinent evidence and witnesses prior to the Controlling Board making its final determination.
- F. The filing of the grievance shall in no way interfere with the right of the Board to proceed in carrying out its management responsibilities subject to the final resolution of the grievance.

- G. It is understood by the parties that no grievance shall be filed based upon any prior or previous agreement or upon alleged grievance occurring prior to the effective date of this Agreement.
- H. Commencing forty-five (45) calendar days prior to the last working day for teachers, all days referenced in this Article shall be calendar days. The Association shall inform the Board this limitation is in effect at Level 1.
- I. The Board shall give the Association a twenty-four (24) hour advance notice of any grievance meeting.
- J. The grievant shall be present at all scheduled grievance meetings at each level or the grievance shall be forfeited.

**ARTICLE 18  
CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS**

Both parties recognize the desirability of continuous and uninterrupted operation of the instructional program during the normal school year and the avoidance of disputes which threaten to interfere with such operations.

Inasmuch as the parties have removed the cause of such disruptions in instituting a comprehensive grievance procedure which culminates in binding arbitration, the parties therefore pledge:

- A. The Association agrees that it will not, during the period of this Agreement, directly or indirectly engage in or assist in any strike, as said term is defined by the Public Employment Relations Act.
- B. The parties agree that they will not, during the period of this Agreement, directly or indirectly engage in or assist in any Unfair Labor Practice as defined by Section 10 of the Public Employment Relations Act.

**ARTICLE 19  
RIGHTS OF THE DISTRICT**

It is expressly agreed that the District reserves all responsibilities, powers, rights, and authority vested in it by the Laws and Constitution of Michigan and the United States except those which are expressly relinquished herein by the District. Such rights reserved to the District shall include by way of partial illustration the right to:

- 1. Manage and control its business, its equipment, and its operation.
- 2. Continue its rights, policies, and practices of assignment and direction of its personnel and scheduling.
- 3. Direct the work force, including the right to hire, promote, discipline, transfer, and determine the size of the work force.
- 4. Determine the services, supplies, and equipment necessary to continue its operation.
- 5. Adopt reasonable rules and regulations.
- 6. Determine the qualifications of employees, including health conditions.
- 7. Determine overall goals and objectives as well as the policies affecting the educational program.
- 8. Determine the administrative organization, its function and authority.
- 9. Determine the location or relocation of its facilities, including the establishment of relocations of new schools, buildings, departments, divisions or subdivisions thereof, and the relocation or closing of offices, departments, divisions or subdivisions, buildings or other facilities.

The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, duties and responsibilities by the District and the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and practices in the furtherance thereof, shall be the exclusive prerogative of the District except as limited by the specific terms of this Agreement.

**ARTICLE 20  
SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLANS**

It is hereby agreed by and between undersigned parties with respect to the responsibility contained in the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, as amended, 20 USC 6301 et seq., as well as in P.A. 25 of 1990 to adopt and implement school improvement plans and the continuing school improvement process for each school within the district, the parties hereby acknowledge and recognize that the terms of the collective bargaining agreement between them govern as to the wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment of teachers addressed therein and that those terms shall not be altered or modified through the school improvement process except by mutual agreement of the undersigned Board of Education and Association, executed in writing. Furthermore, notwithstanding the waiver of bargaining set forth in Article 22 of the collective bargaining agreement between them, the parties acknowledge and recognize the obligation to bargain with respect to any significant change in an established working condition made pursuant to any school improvement plan or process as may be otherwise required under the No Child Left Behind Act or the Public Employment Relations Act.

**ARTICLE 21  
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS**

- A. This Agreement shall supersede any rules, policies, regulations, or practices of the District which shall be contrary to, or inconsistent with, its terms.
- B. The Board and the Association pledge themselves to seek to extend the advantages of public education to every student without regard to race, creed, religion, sex, color, or national origin and to seek to achieve full equality of educational opportunity for all pupils.
- C. This Agreement shall be exclusively between the District and the Association and not dependent upon approval of any other such organization.
- D. The Association has the right to appear on the Board Agenda as provided for in the Board Policy 1211.
- E. All letters of agreement between the parties that took effect prior to the expiration of this Agreement will expire on the expiration date of this Agreement.

**ARTICLE 22  
WAIVER**

The parties acknowledge that during negotiations which resulted in this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, the District and the Association for the life of this Agreement voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered by this Agreement. Matters of common concern may be subject to negotiations during the period of this Agreement upon request and mutual agreement of both parties.

**ARTICLE 23  
DURATION OF AGREEMENT**

- A. This Agreement incorporates the agreement reached by the parties on all issues which were subjects of negotiation. This Agreement may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary mutual consent of the parties in writing as an amendment to this Agreement.
  
- B. This Agreement shall become effective September 1, 2005 and shall continue in effect through August 31, 2008. If an agreement is not reached on the renewal of this Agreement prior to the expiration date, it shall expire at such expiration date unless it is extended by mutual agreement of the parties in writing.

**BALDWIN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS    BALDWIN EDUCATION ASSOCIATION**

\_\_\_\_\_  
Judith A. Eversole, President  
Board of Education

\_\_\_\_\_  
Clyde Welford, President  
Baldwin Education Association

\_\_\_\_\_  
Kenneth A. Moore, Secretary  
Board of Education

\_\_\_\_\_  
Bruce Garlock, Chief Negotiator  
Baldwin Education Association

August 23, 2005  
Date of Ratification

August 23, 2005  
Date of Ratification

**Appendix A-1  
Baldwin Community Schools  
2005-2006 SALARY SCHEDULE**

		BA BASE = <b>30000</b>				
		<b>BA</b>	<b>BA+18</b>	<b>BA+24</b>	<b>MA/BA+30</b>	<b>MA+15</b>
<b>Step</b>	<b>Step Index</b>	<b>Base = 1.00</b>	<b>Factor = 1.09</b>	<b>Factor = 1.12</b>	<b>Factor = 1.15</b>	<b>Factor = 1.225</b>
1	1.0000	30000	32700	33600	34500	36750
2	1.0570	31710	34564	35515	36467	38845
3	1.1140	33420	36428	37430	38433	40940
4	1.1710	35130	38292	39346	40400	43034
5	1.2280	36840	40156	41261	42366	45129
6	1.2850	38550	42020	43176	44333	47224
7	1.3420	40260	43883	45091	46299	49319
8	1.3990	41970	45747	47006	48266	51413
9	1.4560	43680	47611	48922	50232	53508
10	1.5130	45390	49475	50837	52199	55603
11	1.5228	45684	49796	51166	52537	55963
12	1.5326	45978	50116	51495	52875	56323
13	1.5424	46272	50436	51825	53213	56683
14	1.5522	46566	50757	52154	53551	57043
15	1.5620	46860	51077	52483	53889	57404
16	1.5718	47154	51398	52812	54227	57764
17	1.5816	47448	51718	53142	54565	58124
18	1.5914	47742	52039	53471	54903	58484
19	1.6012	48036	52359	53800	55241	58844
20	1.6110	48330	52680	54130	55580	59204
21	1.6208	48624	53000	54459	55918	59564

**Note: Steps 11 through 21 are in lieu of longevity payments**

**Appendix A-2**  
**Salary Schedules for 2006-2007 and 2007-2008**

Salary schedules will reflect the District's ability to increase compensation for teachers based on the District's per pupil foundation allowance and the number of students attending the District at the time of the fall pupil count.

Definitions:

**Fall Student Count (c):** the student count as submitted by the District on the state fall count day.

**State Aid Foundation Grant (f):** the state aid foundation grant allowance for Baldwin as of September 30 of the contract year. **A contract year** is from September 1 through August 31.

**Revenue (r):** Revenue, for purposes of this appendix, is the product of the Fall Student Count and the State Aid Foundation Grant:  $(f \times c)$ .

**Growth (g):** Annual revenue growth, the calculated difference between the revenue-values (r) in consecutive years.

Using the above-defined terms and variables, the salary schedules for 2006-2008 will be determined as follows:

If growth is less than \$54371 then the salary schedule will be increased by .7%	If $g < \$54371$ then increase the salary schedule by .7%
If growth is at least \$54371 and less than \$208129 then the salary schedule will be increased by 1.5%	If $\$54371 \leq g < \$208129$ then increase the salary schedule by 1.5%
If growth is at least \$208129 and less than \$285008 then the salary schedule will be increased by 2.3%	If $\$208129 \leq g < \$285008$ then increase the salary schedule by 2.3%
If growth is at least \$285008 then the salary schedule will be increased by 3.0 %	If $g \geq \$285008$ then increase the salary schedule by 3.0%

If there is a mid-year change in the state's foundation allowance (f), the final amount will be used for calculating the succeeding year's contract schedule.

The adjustments to the salary schedule, as determined by the formulas above, will be made after the state foundation allowance has been finalized, no later than September 30 and after the District submits its Student Count. Such adjustments will be made no later than the second pay of October. The salary schedule for the preceding year will be used until the adjustments have been made.

**APPENDIX B  
EXTRA DUTY PAYMENT SCHEDULE**

The salaries are computed by multiplying the percentage listed for each activity times BA minimum. The BA minimums are as stated in Appendix A. All positions will not necessarily be filled.

I.	<b><u>HIGH SCHOOL:</u></b>	
	Student Council Advisor	5%
	Yearbook Advisor -Without Yearbook Class	5%
	Newspaper Advisor - Without Journalism Class	5%
	Band Director (grades K-12)	10%
	Play Director (per production)	2%
	Ski Advisor (grades 6-12)	4%
	Science Fair Director	2%
	Senior Class Advisor	8%
	Junior Class Advisor	8%
	Sophomore Class Advisor	5%
	Freshman Class Advisor	5%
	Co-Op (School to Work) Coordinator	3%
	National Honor Society Advisor	3%
	Varsity Club Advisor	3%
	Choral Director	2%
	Art Fair Director (K-12)	2%
	Gifted & Talented Coordinator (K-12)	6%
	SADD Advisor	2%
	Debate Coach	2%
	Forensics Coach	2%
II.	<b><u>MIDDLE SCHOOL:</u></b>	
	Science Fair Director	2%
	Yearbook Advisor	4%
	Student Council Advisor	4%
	Choral Director	2%
	National Honor Society Advisor	2%
	Math Counts Advisor	2%
III.	<b><u>ELEMENTARY:</u></b>	
	Science Fair Director	2%
	Choral Director	2%

IV. **ATHLETICS:**

Head Basketball Coach (Boys)	12%
Head Basketball Coach (Girls)	12%
Head Football Coach (Boys)	12%
Head Baseball Coach (Boys)	10%
Head Softball Coach (Girls)	10%
Head Track Coach (Boys)	10%
Head Track Coach (Girls)	10%
Head Cross Country Coach	5%
Head Golf Coach (Boys & Girls)	5%
Head Volleyball Coach (Girls)	10%
Assistant or Junior Varsity Volleyball Coach (Girls)	8%
Assistant or Junior Varsity Basketball Coach (Boys)	8%
Assistant or Junior Varsity Basketball Coach (Girls)	8%
Assistant or Junior Varsity Softball Coach (Girls)	6%
Assistant or Junior Varsity Baseball Coach (Boys)	6%
Assistant or Junior Varsity Football Coach (Boys)	8%
Boys Bowling Coach (if separate from girls)	3%
Girls Bowling Coach (if separate from boys)	3%
Boys and Girls Bowling Coach (if combined)	5%
Intramural Basketball Coach (Boys & Girls)	5%
Cheerleader Coach for Fall Sports	6%
Cheerleader Coach for Winter Sports	6%

V. **MIDDLE SCHOOL SPORTS**

Football Coach (Boys)	4%
Basketball Coach (Boys)	4%
Basketball Coach (Girls)	4%
Track Coach (Boys & Girls)	4%
Fall Cheerleader Coach:	4%
Winter Cheerleader Coach:	4%
Volleyball Coach	5%

VI. **ELEMENTARY SPORTS**

Elementary Sports Coach	3%
Elementary Cheerleader Coach	3%

**APPENDIX C-1  
2005-2006 BALDWIN SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR**

Date	Schedule	Student	Teacher
August 22	New Teachers only Report	0	0*
August 23	All Teachers Staff Report	0	1
August 24	All Teachers - ISD In-Service	0	1
August 25	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
August 26	Teachers need not Report		
August 30	Open House - All Buildings		
Aug 29-31	Regular Session	3	3
Sept 1	Regular Session	1	1
Sept 2-5	No School Labor Day Weekend		
Sept 6-30	Regular Session	19	19
Oct 3-31	Regular Session	20	20
Oct 19	All Teachers - ISD In-Service	0	1
Oct 28	End of 1 <sup>st</sup> Marking Period		
Nov 1-30	Regular Session	20	20
Nov 10&11	Parent Teacher Conferences (1/2 Day Students) Afternoon sessions both days, Evening session Nov 10 only		
Nov 24-25	No School Thanksgiving Break		
Dec 1-16	Regular Session	12	12
Dec 19-30	No School Christmas Break		
Jan 3-31	Regular Session	19	19
Jan 12	End of 1 <sup>st</sup> Semester		
Jan 13	No Students - Teacher Records Day	0	1
Jan 16	No School Martin Luther King Day		
Feb 1-28	Regular Session	18	18
Feb 17	All teachers - ISD In-Service	0	1
Feb 20	No School President's Day		
March 1-24	Regular Session	17	17
March 17	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
March 24	End of 3 <sup>rd</sup> Marking Period		
Mar 27- 31	No School Spring Break		
April 3-28	Regular Session	19	19
Apr 12&13	Parent Teacher Conferences (1/2 Day Students) Afternoon sessions both days, evening session Apr 12 only		
Apr 14	No School Good Friday		
May 1-31	Regular Session	22	22
May 29	No School Memorial Day	0	0
June 1-7	Regular Session	5	5
June 8	No Students - Records' Day	0	1
<b>TOTALS</b>		<b>175</b>	<b>183</b>

\*New Teachers Work 184 Days \_\_\_\_\_

- Formatted: Underline
- Formatted: Tabs: 5.75", Right
- Deleted: ... [1]
- Formatted ... [2]
- Formatted ... [3]
- Deleted: ...report ...\* ... [4]
- Deleted: ... [5]
- Deleted: ... [6]
- Deleted: ... [7]
- Deleted: ...report ... [8]
- Deleted: ... [9]
- Deleted: ... [10]
- Deleted: ... [11]
- Deleted: ... [12]
- Deleted: October... [13]
- Deleted: ... [14]
- Deleted: ... [15]
- Deleted: ... [16]
- Deleted: ... & ...day for s ... [17]
- Deleted: ... [18]
- Deleted: ... [19]
- Deleted: ... [20]
- Deleted: ... [21]
- Deleted: 2... 20... 20 ... [22]
- Deleted: ... [23]
- Deleted: ... [24]
- Deleted: ... [25]
- Deleted: ... [26]
- Deleted: ... [27]
- Deleted: ... [28]
- Deleted: ... [29]
- Deleted: ... [30]
- Deleted: ... [31]
- Deleted: ... [32]
- Deleted: April... & ... [33]
- Deleted: ...session ...il ... [34]
- Deleted: April... [35]
- Deleted: ... [36]
- Deleted: ... [37]
- Deleted: 6... 4... 4 ... [38]
- Deleted: 7... Records ... [39]
- Deleted: ... [40]

**APPENDIX C-2  
2006-2007 BALDWIN SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR**

<u>Date</u>	<u>Schedule</u>	<u>Student</u>	<u>Teacher</u>
Aug 21	New Teachers only Report	0	0*
Aug 22	All Teachers Staff Report	0	1
Aug 23	All Teachers - ISD In-Service	0	1
Aug 24	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
Aug 28-31	Regular Session	4	4
Aug 29	Open House – All Buildings		
Sept 5-29	Regular Session	19	19
Oct 2-31	Regular Session	21	21
Oct 18	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
Oct 27	End of 1 <sup>st</sup> Marking Period		
Nov 1-30	Regular Session	20	20
Nov 9&10	Parent Teacher Conferences (1/2 Day Students) Afternoon sessions both days, Evening session Nov.9 only		
Nov 23-24	No School Thanksgiving Break		
Dec 1-21	Regular Session	15	15
Dec 23-Jan 1	No School Christmas Break		
Jan 2-31	Regular Session	20	20
Jan 11	End of 1 <sup>st</sup> Semester		
Jan 12	No Students – Teacher Records Day	0	1
Jan 15	No School Martin Luther King Day		
Feb 1-28	Regular Session	18	18
Feb 16	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
Feb 19	No School President’s Day		
March 1-23	Regular Session	16	16
Mar Date TBD	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
March 16	End of 3 <sup>rd</sup> Marking Period		
March 26-30	No School Spring Break		
April 2-30	Regular Session	20	20
April 4&5	Parent Teacher Conferences (1/2 Day Students) Afternoon sessions both days, evening session Apr 4 only		
Apr 6	No School Good Friday		
May 1-31	Regular Session	22	22
May 28	No School Memorial Day	0	0
June 1	No Students - Records’ Day	0	1
<b>TOTALS</b>		<b>175</b>	<b>183</b>

Formatted: Tabs: 4.75", Right + 5.75", Right + Not at 4.7" + 5.7"

\* New Teachers Work 184 Days

Deleted: .  
Deleted:  
Deleted:

**APPENDIX C-3  
2007-2008 BALDWIN SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR**

Date	Schedule	Student	Teacher
Aug 20	New Teachers only Report	0	0*
Aug 21	All Teachers Staff Report	0	1
Aug 22	All Teachers - ISD In-Service	0	1
Aug 23	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
Aug 27-30	Regular Session	4	4
Sept 4-28	Regular Session	19	19
Aug 28	Open House – All Buildings		
Oct 1-31	Regular Session	22	22
Oct 17	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
Oct 26	End of 1 <sup>st</sup> Marking Period		
Nov 1-30	Regular Session	20	20
Nov 8&9	Parent Teacher Conferences (1/2 Day Students) Afternoon sessions both days, Evening session Nov.9 only		
Nov 22-23	No School Thanksgiving Break		
Dec 1-21	Regular Session	15	15
Dec 22-Jan 6	No School Christmas Break		
Jan 7-31	Regular Session	17	17
Jan 17	End of 1 <sup>st</sup> Semester		
Jan 18	No Students – Teacher Records Day	0	1
Jan 21	No School Martin Luther King Day		
Feb 1-29	Regular Session	19	19
Feb 15	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
Feb 18	No School President’s Day		
March 1-28	Regular Session	18	18
Mar Date TBD	Full Day Teacher In-Service	0	1
Mar 21	No School Good Friday		
March 28	End of 3 <sup>rd</sup> Marking Period		
March 31-Apr 4	No School Spring Break		
April 7-30	Regular Session	18	18
April 17&18	Parent Teacher Conferences (1/2 Day Students) Afternoon sessions both days, evening session Apr. 17 only		
May 1-30	Regular Session	21	21
May 26	No School Memorial Day	0	0
Jun 2-3	Regular Session	2	2
June 4	No Students - Records’ Day	0	1
<b>TOTALS</b>		<b>175</b>	<b>183</b>

← --- **Formatted:** Tabs: 4.75", Right + 5.75", Right + Not at 4.7" + 5.7"

**Deleted:**  
**Deleted:**

\*New Teachers Work 184 Days

**APPENDIX D  
GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM  
BALDWIN EDUCATION ASSOCIATION  
BALDWIN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS**

Grievance Number \_\_\_\_\_

Distribution of form:

Grievance Report  
Submit to Principal in duplicate

1. Superintendent
2. Principal
3. Association
4. Teacher

BUILDING    ASSIGNMENT    NAME OF GRIEVANT    DATE FILED

---

LEVEL 1

Date cause of grievance occurred: \_\_\_\_\_

1. Statement of grievance and contract article(s) violated: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

2. Relief sought: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Signature, Grievance Chairperson \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

Disposition of Principal: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Principal's Signature \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

Position of the  
Association: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_

Signature, Grievance Chairperson \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

LEVEL 2

A. Date received by the Superintendent or Designee: \_\_\_\_\_

B. Disposition of Superintendent or Designee: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Superintendent's Signature \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

C. Position of the Association: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Grievance Chairperson Signature \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

LEVEL 3

A. Date received by the Board of Education: \_\_\_\_\_

B. Disposition of the Board: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Board President Signature \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

C. Position of the Association: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Grievance Chairperson Signature \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

LEVEL 4

A. Date submitted to Arbitration: \_\_\_\_\_

B. Disposition and award of Arbitrator: \_\_\_\_\_

Signature \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

Attach additional sheets as necessary.

**APPENDIX E**  
TEACHER EVALUATION FORM  
BALDWIN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

NAME \_\_\_\_\_

YEAR \_\_\_\_\_ FIRST \_\_\_\_\_ SECOND \_\_\_\_\_ THIRD \_\_\_\_\_ TENURE

DATE OF OBSERVATION \_\_\_\_\_

NOTIFICATION OF OBSERVATION \_\_\_\_\_ ADVANCED NOTICE  
\_\_\_\_\_ UNANNOUNCED

SUBJECT OBSERVED \_\_\_\_\_

LENGTH OF OBSERVATION \_\_\_\_\_

GUIDE FOR TEACHER APPRAISAL:

I. PURPOSE.

- A. To Improve Instruction.
  - 1. By teacher self-appraisal.
  - 2. By principal's appraisal.
  - 3. By teacher-principal conference.
- B. To provide the administration with a ready, permanent, and complete record of the teacher's performance.

II. HOW THE APPRAISAL IS TO BE CONDUCTED.

- A. Principal's appraisal.
  - 1. By observation from time teacher was hired.
  - 2. Classroom visits at least as often as required by tenure laws.
- B. Teacher-Principal conference. The appraisal is discussed during this conference.

III. DISPOSITION OF APPRAISAL SHEETS.

- A. Original copy forwarded to Superintendent's Office.
- B. Copy retained by Principal's office.
- C. Copy retained by the teacher.

RATING CODE:           1     =     SATISFACTORY  
                              2     =     NEEDS IMPROVEMENT  
                              3     =     UNSATISFACTORY

PART I:

- \_\_\_\_\_ 1.     VOICE  
                  Comments:
- \_\_\_\_\_ 2.     PUPILS SEEM TO BE LEARNING  
                  Comments:
- \_\_\_\_\_ 3.     ACCEPTS STUDENTS AS INDIVIDUALS  
                  Comments:
- \_\_\_\_\_ 4.     ABILITY TO USE THE TEACHING METHOD OBSERVED  
                  Comments:
- \_\_\_\_\_ 5.     MAINTAINS CLASSROOM CONTROL  
                  Comments:
- \_\_\_\_\_ 6.     EVIDENCES KNOWLEDGE OF SUBJECT MATTER  
                  Comments:
- \_\_\_\_\_ 7.     OVERALL IMPRESSION OF PERIOD OBSERVED  
                  Comments:

PART II:

Observations accumulated from class observations, day-to-day contacts, both casual and formal, and conversations with teachers.

\_\_\_\_\_ 8. PROFESSIONAL ATTITUDE  
Comments:

\_\_\_\_\_ 9. RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER PERSONNEL  
Comments:

\_\_\_\_\_ 10. RESPONSIBILITY  
Comments:

\_\_\_\_\_ 11. CONCERN FOR INDIVIDUALS, BOTH IN AND OUT OF THE CLASSROOM  
Comments:



**Appendix F-1**  
**INDIVIDUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (IDP)**  
**Probationary Teacher – General Overview**

The IDP should be:

- generic at first, with the flexibility to be altered, added to, changed, etc. throughout the year
- instructional in nature
- positive in tone, goal-oriented, non-threatening
- developed mutually by the teacher and principal
- supportive – including what help can be expected from the school administration
- specific in what plans/actions the teacher will use
- dated and signed by both the teacher and principal

The development of the plan should consider:

- input from the teacher in consultation with the evaluator
- one-on-one discussion about the school's mission
- the expectations the school has for improvement
- student success should be the focus of instruction
- teacher success as critical to the entire process
- the district evaluation process should be specific about the relationship between the IDP and the formal evaluation process
- examples of what you require with regard to lesson design, class management, visitations, student relationships, feedback, and professionalism
- specifics about the nature and type of assistance the teacher can expect to receive from the administration
- a positive work environment with students, parents, and staff

The mechanics of the IDP process should include:

- advanced information for the teacher on the process the administration plans to use
- time for the probationary teacher to get started and then review and input to the IDP
- advance notice of when the IDP discussions will be held and of the topics that will be discussed
- being held in a more formal setting with the teacher, mentor, and principal
- specifications for probationary or non-probationary teachers

The actual IDP should be formalized in writing and include the following:

- lesson expectations i.e. daily objectives that are clearly understood by the students
- instructional techniques i.e. “wait time”, “practice time”, “re-teaching”
- physical movement/positioning of the teacher in the classroom
- student expectations for academic work and behavior
- teacher grading procedures – students must know these
- general building expectations for staff involvement
- responsibilities of the teacher
- responsibilities of the mentor
- responsibilities of the evaluator

**Appendix F-2**  
**INDIVIDUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (IDP)**  
**Tenure Teacher – General Overview**

The IDP should be:

- remedial in nature
- positive in tone, goal-oriented
- directive in that improvements in specific areas are pointed and clear
- developed mutually by the teacher and principal
- supportive – including what help can be expected from the school administration
- specific in what plans/actions the teacher will use
- dated and signed by both the teacher and principal

The development of the plan should consider:

- input from the teacher in consultation with the evaluator
- one-on-one discussion about the area needed for remediation
- the expectations the school has for improvement
- student success should be the focus
- teacher success as critical to the entire process
- the district evaluation process should be specific about the relationship between the IDP and the formal evaluation process
- examples of what you require in terms of remediating change in procedures, lesson design, class management, student relationships, feedback, and professionalism.
- specifics about the nature and type of assistance the teacher can expect to receive from the administration
- a positive work environment with students, parents, and staff

The mechanics of the IDP process should:

- only be triggered by less than satisfactory evaluation, disciplinary action, reprimand, or unprofessional conduct
- include advanced information for the teacher on the process the administration plans to use
- include timelines for the tenure teacher to accomplish the improvements specified
- include advance notice of when future IDP discussions will take place to assess progress
- be held in a more formal setting with the teacher, association representative, and principal

The actual IDP should be formalized in writing and include the following:

- remedial expectations with objectives that are clearly understood by the teacher
- techniques that will assist the teacher in bringing about the needed improvement
- a statement that makes it clear that, with the help outlined, the identified change must take place... and by when
- an appropriate area on the bottom of the form that allows for the teacher to add a narrative or if mutual agreement cannot be reached, to so indicate
- signatures of both the teacher and principal/administrator

<b>Page 42: [1] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [1] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [2] Formatted</b> Tabs: 1.5", Left + 4.75", Right + 5.75", Right	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [3] Formatted</b> Tabs: 1.5", Left + 4.75", Right + 5.75", Right	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [4] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [4] Deleted</b> report	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [4] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [4] Deleted</b> *	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [5] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [5] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [5] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [6] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [6] Deleted</b> -	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [6] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [6] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [7] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [7] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [7] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [8] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [8] Deleted</b> report	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>
<b>Page 42: [9] Deleted</b>	<b>Randy Howes</b>	<b>8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM</b>

Page 42: [9] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [9] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [9] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [10] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [10] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [10] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [10] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [11] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [11] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [12] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [12] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [12] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [12] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [13] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
October		
Page 42: [13] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [13] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [13] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [14] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [14] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [14] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [14] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM

Page 42: [14] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [15] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [15] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [16] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [16] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [16] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [16] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [16] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [17] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [17] Deleted &	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [17] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [17] Deleted day for students)	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [18] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [18] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [19] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [19] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [20] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [20] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [20] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [20] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [21] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [21] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM

Page 42: [22] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
. 2		
Page 42: [22] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [22] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
		20
20		
Page 42: [23] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
.		
Page 42: [23] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [24] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [24] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [25] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
.		
Page 42: [25] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [25] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
-		
Page 42: [26] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
.		
Page 42: [26] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [26] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [26] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [27] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
.		
Page 42: [27] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [27] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
-		
Page 42: [27] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [28] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
.		
Page 42: [28] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM

Page 42: [28] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
–		
Page 42: [29] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [29] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [29] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [30] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [30] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [30] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [31] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
March		
Page 42: [31] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [31] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
–		
Page 42: [32] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [32] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [32] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [33] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
April		
Page 42: [33] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
&		
Page 42: [33] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [34] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [34] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
session		
Page 42: [34] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
il		
Page 42: [35] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
April		
Page 42: [35] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM

Page 42: [35] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
—		
Page 42: [36] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [36] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [36] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [37] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [37] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [37] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [38] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
6		
Page 42: [38] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
		4
	4	
Page 42: [39] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
7		
Page 42: [39] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
— Records Day		
Page 42: [39] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
_____		
Page 42: [39] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [40] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [40] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM
Page 42: [40] Deleted	Randy Howes	8/30/2005 8:45:00 AM